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BEFORE THE
STATE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

GOLDEN CROSS HEALTH CARE

1450 N. Fair Oaks Avenue
Pasadena, CA 91103

License Number:  970000082
Facility ID:            970000171

Respondent

CPH Case No. 20-AL-LNC-39848

TEMPORARY SUSPENSION ORDER
PURSUANT TO HEALTH AND SAFETY
CODE SECTION 1296 AND STATEMENT
TO RESPONDENT

RESPONDENT IS HEREBY NOTIFIED that the Director of the California Department of Public
Health (Department) has made a determination, in accordance with Health and Safety Code
section 1296, to temporarily and immediately suspend your license to operate Golden Cross
Health Care. This temporary suspension shall remain in effect until the conclusion of the
administrative proceedings herein. Upon receipt of notice of defense, the Director shall, within
15 days, set the matter for hearing, which shall be held as soon as possible but not less than
30 days after receipt of the notice. If the Director fails to make a final determination on the
merits within 60 (sixty) days after the hearing has been completed, the temporary suspension
shall be deemed vacated. The Department maintains that there is an exception to the
automatic stay which allows the Department, a governmental regulatory agency, from
enforcing or utilizing its regulatory power.

EFFECTIVE JUNE 11, 2020,

1. Your license to operate the skilled nursing facility Golden Cross Health Care is temporarily
suspended; and

2. You must immediately cease operation of the skilled nursing facility and any other services
that are part of the license for Golden Cross Health Care. and work with and take direction
from the Temporary Manager currently appointed to Golden Cross Health Care to conduct
and orderly transfer of residents.

RESPONDENT IS HEREBY ADDITIONALLY NOTIFIED that at any hearing regarding
the proceedings for the Temporary Suspension, the California Department of Public
Health also seeks that Respondent’s license to operate Golden Cross Health Care be
revoked pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 1294.

The enclosed Accusation in this matter is served on you. All communications pertaining to this
matter, including the notices and requests referred to below, should be sent to the attorney
who represents the Department.





-1-
ACCUSATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

REBECCA DIETZEN
SBN: 233072
Assistant Chief Counsel
DANIEL MEYER
SBN: 252348
Attorney IV
Department of Public Health
1415 L Street, Suite 500
Sacramento, CA 95814
Telephone: (916) 558-1775

Attorney for the State
Department of Public Health
Licensing and Certification Division

BEFORE THE
STATE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

In Matter of:

GOLDEN CROSS HEALTH CARE

1450 N. Fair Oaks Avenue
Pasadena, CA 91103

License Number:  970000082
Facility ID:            970000171

Respondent

CDPH Case No. 20-AL-LNC-39848

ACCUSATION

I

Heidi Steinecker, Complainant herein (Complainant), files this Accusation in her

official capacity as the Deputy Director, Center for Health Care Quality, California

Department of Public Health, State of California.  Complainant makes and files the instant

Accusation solely in her official capacity and not otherwise.  This Accusation is based on

Complainant’s information and belief.

II

The Department of Public Health (Department) is the agency of the State of

California responsible for the licensure of Skilled Nursing Facilities pursuant to California

Health and Safety Code section 1250 et seq. and California Code of Regulations, Title

22, section 720001 et seq.

///
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III

Respondent, (Respondent), is licensed by the Department to operate and maintain

the skilled nursing facility (SNF) known as Golden Cross Health Care (Facility) located at

1450 N. Fair Oaks Avenue, Pasadena California 91103 (License No. 970000082). (A true

and correct copy of the license is attached hereto as Exhibit A) Pursuant to said license,

Respondent is required to comply with Health and Safety Code section 1250 et seq. and

California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 720001, et seq.

At all times mentioned in this Accusation, Respondent was licensed to operate and

maintain said Facility.  Wherever it is alleged in this Accusation that Respondent violated

one or more statutes or regulations, the allegation shall be deemed in each case to mean

that Respondent, through its employees or agents, violated the statute or regulation and

that Respondent aided, abetted, or permitted the violation.

IV

DEPARTMENT AUTHORITY

Health and Safety Code section 1294 provides that the Department may revoke a

license to operate a skilled nursing facility for violation by the licensee of any of the

provisions of chapter 2, division 2, of the Health and Safety Code, or of the rules and

regulation promulgated there under; or for conduct inimical to the public health, morals,

welfare, or safety of the people of the State of California in the maintenance and

operation of a skilled nursing facility.

Health and Safety Code Section1296 provides that the Director may temporarily

suspend any license or special permit prior to any hearing, when in his or her opinion the

action is necessary to protect the public welfare. This temporary suspension shall remain

in effect until the hearing is completed and the Director has made a final determination

on the merits.

///

///

///
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V

BACKGROUND

The Department conducted multiple inspections of Respondent’s facility.  An

inspection completed on May 27, 2020 resulted in a pattern of widespread deficiencies

that resulted in a level L immediate jeopardy citation.  The deficiencies are detailed in

State Form 2567 dated May 27, 2020. (A true and correct copy of the State Form 2567

is attached hereto as Exhibit B and is incorporated by reference herein.)   Another

inspection was completed on May 28, 2020.  Numerous deficiencies, including six

immediate jeopardy deficiencies, were found and are detailed in State Form 2567 dated

May 28, 2020. (A true and correct copy of the State Form 2567 is attached hereto as

Exhibit C and is incorporated by reference herein.) An additional inspection was

completed on May 31, 2020 which resulted in Respondent being cited for a pattern of

deficiencies that resulted in a level K immediate jeopardy citation being issued. (A true

and correct copy of the State Form 2567 is attached hereto as Exhibit D and is

incorporated by reference herein.)

Based on the seriousness of the deficiencies, on June 2, 2020, a Statement of

Cause and Concerns was served on Respondent and a temporary manager (TM) was

installed in the facility. On June 3 and 10, 2020, amended versions of this Statement of

Cause and Concerns were sent to the Respondent to correct clerical errors. (A true and

correct copy of all three Statements of Cause and Concerns are attached hereto as

Exhibit E and are incorporated by reference herein.)  TM observed continued violations

of State and Federal statutes and regulations.   Based upon the findings in the above-

referenced report, and the observations of the TM, the Director has made a

determination that, in order to protect the welfare of the facility’s residents, Respondent’s

license to operate the skilled nursing facility should be temporarily suspended effective

June 11, 2020.

///

///
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Good cause exists for the revocation of Respondent’s license, pursuant to Health

and Safety Code section 1294, in that Respondents have violated, and permitted the

violation of State and Federal regulations governing the operation of the facility, and

has engaged in conduct inimical to the public health, welfare, and safety of the people of

the State of California.

VI

VIOLATIONS

Respondent violated the following regulations and/or statutes, which are grounds

for the temporary suspension of Respondent’s license to operate the skilled nursing

facility known as Golden Cross Health Care.

1. MAY 27, 2020 VIOLATIONS

Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.80(a), (1), (2), (4), (e) and (f) – Infection

Prevention and Control

Respondent failed to provide a safe sanitary environment to help prevent the spread of

infections during the Coronavirus (COVID-19) crisis.  Respondent failed to ensure that

the facility had:

 Certified/licensed staff members in the facility to oversee the infection control

practices in the residential care areas;

 Certified/licensed staff members in the facility to review the template for an

investigation of outbreaks;

 Designated units to separate infected residents from uninfected residents and

from residents awaiting COVID-19 lab test results;

 Assigned dedicated healthcare staff to care for suspected or confirmed COVID-19

residents;

 Kept infected residents in their rooms;

 Instructed staff on how and where to put on and take off personal protective

equipment;

 Separate donning and doffing areas from COVID and Non-COVID areas.
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These deficient practices had the potential to result in the spread of infections that

could lead to death to residents and staff.

2. May 28, 2020 VIOLATIONS

a) Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, § 483.12(a)(1) - Freedom from Abuse,

Neglect, and Exploitation.

The resident has the right to be free from abuse, neglect, misappropriation of

resident property, and exploitation as defined in this subpart. This includes but is not

limited to freedom from corporal punishment, involuntary seclusion and any physical or

chemical restraint not required to treat the resident’s medical symptoms.

Respondent failed to ensure that three of three sampled residents who had the

Corona virus received the necessary care and services in accordance with the resident’s

care plans to maintain and improve their wellbeing, as indicated in the facility’s policies

and procedures.  Respondent’s failures include, but are not limited to the following:

 Failed to ensure Resident 1 had clean linen, clean fingernails, wound treatments,

fresh water available, and assistance to reposition in bed;

 Failed to ensure Resident 2 had showers and clean clothes;

 Failed to ensure Resident 6 received fresh drinking water;

 Failed to ensure the facility had a knowledgeable department head staff and/or

staff to oversee the care and treatment practices in the resident care areas sin the

COVID-19 unit.

The Respondent’s failure to ensure that residents were not neglected increased

the risk of the spread of infections (including COVID-19) to residents which could result in

health complications likely resulting in hospitalization or death. Failure to maintain

adequate personal hygiene may also result in psychosocial harm that could lead to a

negative effect on the residents' health, well-being and overall quality of life.

b) Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, § 483.25 - Quality of Care

Quality of care is a fundamental principle that applies to all treatment and care

provided to facility residents. The facility must ensure that residents receive treatment
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and care in accordance with professional standards of practice, the comprehensive

person-centered care plan, and the residents’ choices.  Respondent failed to provide

nursing care and services for two sampled residents during the Coronavirus crisis in

accordance with the facility’s policies and procedures.  This was evidenced by;

 Facility Staff did not provide Resident 1 with grooming and personal care to keep

the resident clean and comfortable.  The facility’s nursing staff also failed to

assess the resident’s skin when he developed wounds on the right hip, and

discoloration on bilateral toes;

 Facility nursing staff did not provide nursing care when the Resident 2 had

abnormally low and high blood sugar levels.  The nursing staff also did not check

residents blood sugar nor administer the right amount of insulin.

 The Facility’s administrative staff did not oversee the nursing care and treatment

for both residents, due to the fact that both residents resided in the COVID-19

area, which the administrative staff refused to enter.

c) Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §483.25(b)(1) - Pressure ulcers.

Based on the comprehensive assessment of a resident, the facility must ensure

that:
(i) A resident receives care, consistent with professional
standards of practice, to prevent pressure ulcers and does not
develop pressure ulcers unless the individual’s clinical
condition demonstrates that they were unavoidable; and
(ii) A resident with pressure ulcers receives necessary
treatment and services, consistent with professional standards
of practice, to promote healing, prevent infection and prevent
new ulcers from developing.

(42 C.F.R. sec. 483.25(b)(1).)

The facility failed to provide wound care treatments for seven of seven sampled

residents as ordered by the facility physician and according to the facility’s policies and

procedures by failing to:

 Assess and notify Resident 1’s physician of, implement a treatment, and provide

care for Resident 1’s black discolorations on his toes;

///
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 Assess for the location, stage, length, width and depth, presence of fluid or

necrotic tissue of, provide treatment for Resident 1’s pressure ulcers/injuries to his

buttocks and hip;

 Provide treatment and ensure Resident 4 had heel protectors on to prevent

pressure injury as ordered by his physician;

 Provide treatment and ensure Resident 6 received wound treatment on the right

hip as ordered by the physician;

 Provide treatment and ensure Resident 7 received skin treatment on her right heel

and left leg as ordered by the physician;

 Provide treatment and ensure Resident 8 received treatment for a scrape on his

buttocks;

 Provide treatment and ensure that Resident 9 received treatment for toe

discoloration;

 Provide treatment and ensure that Resident 10 received treatment for abrasions to

his toes.

These deficient practices resulted in the residents experiencing worsening of their

wounds, to experience pain, and put them at risk for infection that could lead to

hospitalization, health complications and death.

d) Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §483.25(l) - Dialysis.

The facility must ensure that residents who require dialysis receive such services,

consistent with professional standards of practice, the comprehensive person-centered

care plan, and the residents’ goals and preferences.

The Facility’s nursing staff failed to monitor and identify hemodialysis complications

for one of one sampled resident after the resident returned from the dialysis center.  This

was evidenced by Respondent’s failure to:

 Ensure that licensed nurses assessed resident’s right upper arm arteriovenous

fistula and vein, made by the surgeon to remove and return blood during

hemodialysis, for bleeding as indicated in the resident’s care plan;
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 Monitor resident’s am AV fistula for bruit and thrill (sounds and sensations that can

be monitored by stethoscope and by feel) as indicated in the facility’s policies and

procedures;

 Ensure the dialysis emergency kit was available at resident’s bedside for staff to

use during a bleeding emergency that occurred;

 Ensure the facility had a knowledgeable department head/staff to oversee the

resident’s nursing care while the resident was in the COVID-19 unit.

These deficient practices placed resident at risk for life threatening emergencies

due to bleeding from the AV fistula.  It took staff over twenty minutes to find the

emergency kit to stop the bleeding.  During that time period, the resident had to keep

pressure on his own wound.

e) Code of Federal Regulations § 483.25(i) - Respiratory/Tracheostomy Care

and Suctioning

The facility must ensure that a resident who needs respiratory care, including

tracheostomy care and tracheal suctioning, is provided such care, consistent with

professional standards of practice, the comprehensive person-centered care plan, the

residents' goals and preferences, and 483.65 of this subpart.

Respondent failed to provide oxygen treatment, as the physician ordered, for eight of

eight sampled residents who had COVID-19, per physician’s orders.  The facility failed to:

Ensure staff were monitoring O2 saturation;

Label a residents’ humidifiers;

Provide oxygen treatment at the correct rate;

Obtain an order to titrate the oxygen rate;

These deficient practices placed residents at risk for health complications from

COVID-19 including respiratory distress and/or infection that could lead to hospitalization

or death.

///

///
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f) Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, § 483. 483.60(i)(1)(2) Food safety

requirements.

The facility must store, prepare, distribute and serve food in accordance with professional

safety requirements. Respondent failed to develop and implement a system to identify,

report, monitor and control unsafe food sanitation practices in the facility kitchen that

provides food services for all 65 residents in the facility.  Respondent’s failures include:

 A dirty food cart from the COVID-19 unit was rolled back into the kitchen and

placed next to the food preparation area;

 The dietary staff wiped the dirty food cart next to the food preparation area during

dinner tray line service;

 The evening snacks in a tray cart were not labeled with time, date and resident

name as required to prevent pathogenic microorganism growth or toxic formation;

 The two dietary staff present did not practice hygiene or follow proper sanitary

food preparation rules.  Both staff member were not wearing beard or hair nets,

did not wash hands or change gloves when moving from dirty tasks to clean ones.

  Staff stored personal items, including alcohol, in facility refrigerator, leaving open

the potential of cross contamination of residents’ food that could cause food borne

illnesses;

 Facility did not serve the dinner meals of 10 residents in a timely manner;

 Facility staff did not check the food temperature prior to serving the food, did not

wear gloves while serving the food, and served the food cold to residents.

These deficient practices had the potential to cross-contaminate food served to the

65 residents in the facility.  These practices could cause health complications that could

lead to hospitalization or death.

g) Non-Immediate Jeopardy Deficiencies

The facility was also cited for multiple deficiencies that did not rise to the level of

an immediate jeopardy.  These include, but are not limited to, violations for:

///
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 Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.10(h)(1)-(3)(i)(ii) - failing to ensure

residents privacy/confidentiality of records.

 Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.25(d)(1)(2) – Failing to keep facility

free of accidents/Hazards/Supervision/Devices.

 Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.35(a)(3)(4)(c) – Failure to Employ a

Competent Nursing Staff.

 Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.45(a)(b)(1)-(3) – Failure to have

adequate Pharmacy Services, Procedures and Records.

 Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.45(g)(h)(1)(2) – Failure to

store/Label Drugs and Biologicals Properly.

 Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.20(f)(5) and 483.70(i)(1)-(5) – Failure

to Keep Proper Resident Records.

 Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.80(a)(1)(2)(4)(e)(f) – Infection

Control

3. MAY 31, 2020 VIOLATIONS

a) Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, §§ 483.45(a)(b)(1)-(3) - Pharmacy Services,

Procedures, Pharmacists and Records

Respondent failed to ensure that 10 of 10 sampled residents in the facility received

pharmaceutical services to meet the needs of each resident in a consistent manner in

accordance with physician orders and the facility’s policies and procedures by failing to:

 Administer three doses of Levimar (insulin), two doses of Levimar 15 and four

doses of Klonopin (seizure/anxiety medication) for Resident 1;

 Administer five doses of Haldol (mental/mood disorder medication), 10 doses of

Depakote (seizure/psychiatric medication), five doses of benztropine mesylate

(controls involuntary or uncontrollable movements), and four doses of atorvastatin

(cholesterol medication) for Resident two;

 Administer four doses of Depakote to Resident 3;

///
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 Administer four doses of Dilantin (seizure medication), five doses of Dilantin, three

doses of dorzolamide HCI 2% solution (glaucoma eyedrops) and one dose of

Exelon for Resident 4;

 Administer five doses of Namenda (medication to treat severe confusion) for

resident;

 Administer two doses of Lipitor (cholesterol medication) for Resident 6;

 Administer two doses of Plavix (blood clot medication) for Resident 7;

 Administer eleven doses of memantine HCL (to treat confusion), nine doses of

metformin (controls blood sugar levels), three doses of pantoprazole (used to treat

stomach problems), five doses of Thera-M (supplement), four doses of Claritin

(allergy medication), six doses of donepezil (treats confusion), two doses of

escitalopram oxalate (to treat depression), five doses of fenofibrate sulfate (iron

supplement), and two doses of folic acid (supplement) for Resident 8;

 Administer one dose of Neurontin (seizure/nerve pain medication), two doses of

Pepcid (ulcer medication), three doses of Prozac (depression medication), two

doses of Revia (addiction medication), three doses of thiamine (vitamin), and one

dose of Zocor (cholesterol medication) for Resident 9;

 Administer three doses of anastrozole (breast cancer treatment) for Resident 10.

These deficient practices of failing to administer medications for seizures,

diabetes, cancer and various psychiatric conditions in accordance with physician

orders increased the risk for the Residents to experience health complications

likely resulting in serious harm.

b) Code of Federal Regulations, title 42, § 483.45(f)(2) – Medication Errors

Respondent failed to ensure that the facility administered medications in a timely

manner that was consistent with the physician’s orders and the facility’s policies and

procedures by failing to:

 Administer three doses of Levimar (insulin), two doses of Levimar 15 and four

doses of Klonopin (seizure/anxiety medication) for Resident 1;
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 Administer five doses of Haldol (mental/mood disorder medication), 10 doses of

Depakote (seizure/psychiatric medication), five doses of benztropine mesylate

(controls involuntary or uncontrollable movements), and four doses of atorvastatin

(cholesterol medication) for Resident two;

 Administer four doses of Depakote to Resident 3;

 Administer four doses of Dilantin (seizure medication), five doses of Dilantin, three

doses of dorzolamide HCI 2% solution (glaucoma eyedrops) and one dose of

Exelon for Resident 4;

 Administer five doses of Namenda (medication to treat severe confusion) for

resident;

 Administer two doses of Lipitor (cholesterol medication) for Resident 6;

 Administer two doses of Plavix (blood clot medication) for Resident 7;

 Administer eleven doses of memantine HCL (to treat confusion), nine doses of

metformin (controls blood sugar levels), three doses of pantoprazole (used to treat

stomach problems), five doses of Thera-M (supplement), four doses of Claritin

(allergy medication), six doses of donepezil (treats confusion), two doses of

escitalopram oxalate (to treat depression), five doses of fenofibrate sulfate (iron

supplement), and two doses of folic acid (supplement) for Resident 8;

 Administer one dose of Neurontin (seizure/nerve pain medication), two doses of

Pepcid (ulcer medication), three doses of Prozac (depression medication), two

doses of Revia (addiction medication), three doses of thiamine (vitamin), and one

dose of Zocor (cholesterol medication) for Resident 9;

 Administer three doses of anastrozole (breast cancer treatment) for Resident 10.

These deficient practices of failing to administer medications for seizures,

diabetes, cancer and various psychiatric conditions in accordance with physician orders

increased the risk for the Residents to experience health complications likely resulting in

serious harm.

///
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VII

OBSERVATIONS OF THE TEMPORARY MANAGER

Karen Lapcewich was appointed as the temporary manager of Golden Cross

Health Care on June 02, 2020.   She has submitted a declaration to the Department that

attests to the numerous ongoing and serious quality of care issues at Golden Cross.

(A true and correct copy of the declaration is attached hereto as Exhibit F.)   Violations

that she has observed and concerns she has include, but are not limited to:

 An outside nurse consultant identified that at least 13 residents are suffering from

dehydration because there is no existing hydration program monitoring. Outside

consultants and the TM have had to provide intravenous (IV) hydration. To date,

the facility has not initiated the IVs. Nor was water timely provided to patients

throughout the day.

 There is no skin management program to prevent residents from getting pressure

ulcers. There are no preventative measures for skin break down including proper

care planning and pressure relieving devices to address ongoing pressure ulcer

problems.  Residents are not being turned on a regular basis. Consequently,

residents are continuing to develop pressure ulcers and existing ones are

worsening.

 Similarly, residents are not changed and often lay in their urine for hours.

 There is no current maintenance manager and no logs or maintenance program

could be provided when sought. Of concern is the air filter system, which is not

working properly, and dirt and heavy dust were observed on facility air vents.

 Overall infection control is also of grave concern. Not only is there is no basic

functioning infection operational control program, but there is also not one specific

to COVID-19. Thus, there are infection control issues related to donning and

doffing personal protective equipment (PPE), handwashing, cross-contamination,

and food transport. Moreover, there is no basic infection surveillance tracking and

trending, no COVID-19 surveillance and tracking, and staff are moving in and out
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of red and green zones (COVID-19 positive and negative areas) without taking the

proper precautions.

 The facility is not addressing or preventing resident abuse by the facility staff.

Bruises are not being investigated or reported, so incident reports are not being

generated to understand the origin of the injuries. Cases of abuse are not reported

timely, investigated, and are difficult to prevent. This includes the recent alleged

physical abuse where a staff member allegedly slapped and pushed a resident

into his bed. The owner and director of nursing were notified of this event shortly

after it occurred. They did not report the event within two hours, and they allowed

the staff to continue working through the shift. The staff member was not taken off

the schedule and returned the next day. The police were not notified until several

days later. The TM provided the information to the police rather than the facility

reporting the incident. To date there has been no investigation, no notes in the

patient's chart of the events, and no incident report has been generated.

 There is no weight management program. Approximately 90 percent of residents

have recently lost weight. The dietary department is not following menus or portion

control. Also, it was observed that staff remove meals from the residents prior to

the resident completing the meal and are not allowing the residents to eat their

entire meal. Residents were not offered evening snacks, so the CalMat team

(Medical Assistance Teams (CAL-MATs) are a group of highly trained medical

professionals and other specialists organized and coordinated by the State

Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) for rapid field medical response in

disasters) have been assisting by preparing snacks for residents because the

facility failed to address this issue.

 There is inadequate supervision of patients. One resident has been identified as a

risk for elopement. The resident’s care plan is clearly not effective to prevent this

resident from eloping. The National Guard (brought in after CalMat was

demobilized) found the resident just before the resident ran into the street.
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 Nurses are failing to identify when a resident has a change of condition and failing

to report a change of condition.

 The facility is not conducting interdisciplinary team care plan meetings to meet and

address the residents’ needs.

 There is no full-time staff developer working during day hours to conduct in-service

trainings and monitor staff.

 The Registered Nurse Supervisor’s keys are left out and unsupervised. These

keys include those that secure the narcotics.

 There is no existing activity program. Though COVID-19 may prevent community

activities and room visits, activities can still be easily scheduled for residents.

Residents just watched TV all day with nothing to do and remain isolated.

 There is no Quality Assessment and Improvement Program or even basic quality

assurance.

These observations are being investigated by the Department and may lead to

further deficiencies to be assessed against the facility.

VIII

HEARING

The purpose of the hearing is to permit Respondent an opportunity to present

evidence to rebut the Department’s determination regarding the penalty assessment

against Respondent, the amount of the penalty, the alleged deficiency, or the alleged

failure to correct a deficiency.

IX

RESPONDENT HAS DEMONSTRATED A PATTERN OF CONDUCT INIMICAL TO

THE HEALTH, MORALS, WELFARE, AND SAFETY OF ITS PATIENTS

The Respondent is hereby notified that the Director has made a determination, in

accordance with Health and Safety Code section 1296 to temporarily and immediately

suspend Respondent’s license to operate the skilled nursing facility.  This temporary

suspension shall remain in effect until the conclusion of the administrative proceedings






























































































































































































































































































































































































